Thomas S. Kennedy:
an autobiography by a country doctor*
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Thomas 5.Kennedy waz born at
Goldaboro, North Carelina,om
September 22,1859, the cuuu
son of John T. and Elizabeth
Cox Kennedy. The family liv-
ed in Goldsbore during part
of the Civil War.In the year
1663 they moved to a place
known as the "Badgs place.”
While they lived at the
“"Hass place” the War closed
and |Union generals William
T.] Sherman and |John M.|
Scofield struck Goldabore.
Ia about twelve hours after
they arrived there wasa’t
anything left but the wvomen
apd children, and mothing
lefr in the immediate vicin-
ity surrounding the town.
What they couldn't destroy
they burned.

Being a child of six years
these things were impressed
on DOr. Kennedy's mind very
emphatically, the following
in as he tells it.

THE CIVIL WAR YEARS.

The first thing we bad to
cat was corn picked wp im
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PART ONE

the camps where the horses
were fed, and that they had
trampled on and stood on for
several days. This was after
[Confederate Gemeral| Joba-
ston bhad forced Sherman and
Scoflield to follow him up to
Hillsboro. We would carry
that corm to the well and
wash it and dry it,and parch
it. We lived om it until the
Union Army established head-
quarters at Goldsboro to is-
sue out provisions to Lhe
women and childeen,

I remember well the first
time my mother went; | went
with her. She was dressed in
a homespun dress, & brown
warp and blus filling, and a
paleette hat that she had
alse made.

All the vomen in the South
wore bosespun dJdresses and
palectteo hats then. [f they
dida"t wear the bats they
vare hemensde bonnetts. They
gathered indigo and dyed the
thread blue; young Gtender
oak sprouts dyed the thread
brown ,

As small as 1 was [ well
remember well standing in
line behind Mother until her
time came Lo draw the little
pittance that the army is-
surd to her.

ke had valked 5 wmiles over
country road, sand and clay
to get there. We only walked

the once to draw ratioms.

When the army moved from
the camp grounds arcund our
house they left an old bob-
tailed brindled ox that they
thought would be of mo use
to thew, and an old spring
w=agon oo Lhe comp grounds. [
bad two brothers older than
myself and mot old esough to
be in the war, who were al
home. They captured that old
brindled ox,and took posses=
sion of the wagon. They tied
the old ox to the wagon with
some atrings and anything
they could get hold of;
pieces of rope and a little
leather, so he could pull.
Hother and we younger chil-
dres got im the wagon and ey
two older brothers drove and
led the ox;we rode to Gaolds-
boro te a Captain Bill Wil-
son's wife, where we stayed
satil Father came bome out
of the army in May.

|When Father returned from
the War, be] ...took us and
carvied us out in the coun=
try about six miles from the
town in the forks of Cthe
river and he and the men who
were with him and 2 or 3 of
our aold slaves, who refused
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to leave us,soon had a brand
new log house, "an old timey
log house,” up.He got Mother
and we children in it, and
then put up a stick and dirt
chimney, in order that we
might have a place to cook,
and a fire to keep warm by.

Az scon as that was done
Father and the old slaves
and my older brothers com-
mi nced to preparing land for
cultivation and as soon as
the land was prepared they
planted corn. Such corn has
never been grown before or
since on ‘such peor land as
they had to plant it on. Ev-
ery grain yielded two big
cars to the stalk. We lived
out there in that log house
until the following Decem-
ber; had pleaty of cormn to
go an fer another year. The
older boys would catch opes-
sum and, now and then, kill
a deer, and we got along
precoy well.

We had plenty of
bread to eat,sweat potatoes,
corn, opoasum and sometimes
venison, all we wanted.

Father then rented a farm
and we moved to a place a-
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bout Lwe miles from Golds-
bora. We lived there wuntil
1870, 1 was big eoough by
that time to chop cotton,

drive a cart, haul compost,
and break up ground with a
plow, te haul wood te Golds-
bore Lo saw. 1 made a regu-
lar field hand, did as much
work as any man.We had plen-
ty of everything to . eat and
wear then and have had ever
since. Thank God!

I got to go to school a-
bout 3 months in the winter
Lime; but it wasa't & public
gchool. The old Confederate
goldiers would get together
and usually hire some good
woman and pay her to teach
the school and run it, and
teach the children about 3
months in the winter time.
How and then they would hire
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a4 man.

I never shall forget my
first school. It was to a
Capt. Hewell, a Confederate
Captain. He taught me my
A=B=C’'g, and to spell in the
old "Blue Back."” [ finally
got to "bed" and "milk." I
got te "bed" and spelled
B-E-I). He wanted me te pra-
nounce ity 1 couldn't pro-
nounce it,and as we had been
sleeping on  blankets ever
gince Sherman and Scofield
had burned our houses and
everything in them. When he
asked me what | slept on at
night I just spelled B-E-T,
"blanket.” We got to milk
and I couldn't promounce it.
He asked me what 1 liked to

drink best and I told him
M=I-L=K, "brandy."
Captain Howell quit the

school and turned it over to
my aunt, then a young lady
about 18 or 20. She finished
out the term, The Captain,my
oldest brother, and three or
four other men saddled their

horses and cut out for the
West.
I lived along and worked

like other children in the
country until August 1879.
Host of us had to work in
the field, chopping cotton,
plowing, picking cotton,
feeding the horses and the

mules, hoga, milking, feed-
ing the chickens, rcarrying
wood and water into the

house.We got to go to school
about 3 months in the winter
time as a rtule.

LIFE WITH UNCLE.
The second day of August,
1879, 1 was sent from Wayvne
to Green County, from Golds-
boro te Spate’s Bridge, to
work for an old uncle. The
old man was in his 708, 71,
2 or 3. Yoiu can imagine my
curiesity:; what kind of a
disposition the old fellow

had; what kind of work 1 was
going to do; what kind of
place 1 was going to Llive:
ond what 1 was poing to get
to eat. 1 was very excited
about it.

An older brother of mine
took me down there. We brav-
eled with & horse and buggy,
had countrey roads te travel
and most of it was deep
sand. We left Goldsboro a-
bout 1:00 in the afternoon
and got there about 5:00. It
was & distance of 26 miles.
My brother spent the night
and went back home the next
meEming.

I never had seen the old
man in my life, npor any of
his family that 1 remember.
He had seen me somewhere,and
had seen my father and told
him that he wanted me to
come down there and work in

William T. Sherman, 1865. [Fort Lauder-
dale Historical Society]
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his old store My mother did-
n't want me to go, she ab-
jected to my poingibut Fath-
er seént me just the same. He
didn't pay any attention to
her.

At home where 1 was raised
my father always loved to
see his wife and childeen
enjoying life and being hap-
py and having a good time
around him, Hy uncle had two
grandsons and a daughter all
about my age and in the
store with me. I hadn't been
at Spate's Bridge but a few
days before [ would see them
hiding around and whispering
every time they saw the old
man about. They were afraid
to say anything in his pres-
BOCE.

Well,I wasn't used to that
kind of business., | hadn't
been there but a little
while before I found out he
was a regular old tyrant; he
wanted evervone to be scared
of him, and when he came a=
round where théy were afraid
to say a thing, and if they
did to say it inm a whisper.]
decided that 1 wazsn't going
toe be scared of him; decided
that I would not be like his
grandsong and daughter im
that respect. I did not pro-
pese to let him scare me.

I hadn't been at work in
the store but about a year
before my uncle found out 1
knew something about farm=-
ing. He immediately purchas-
ed a saddle horse, outfitted
him and put me to oversecing
his farms.While my old uncle
lived and 1 was working for
him | was called up at 4:00
every morning; saddled my
horse and stayed in the sad-
dle from then until about
11:00 at night six davs in
the week. He was a regular
ald tyrant and nobody in the
world could hardly live with
him.

He would fuss about any-
thing, his coffee wasn't hot
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enough when he was eating
breakfast; the Negroes wiere-
n't doing the plewing right;
it wouldn't rain according
to his wishes; the weather
didn't suit him; in fact
nothing suited him. He found
something to fuss abeut from
the time he got up in the
morning until he went to bed
at night. He fussed at any-
body, No one could please
him.

The whole trouble was he
had accumulated & lot of
wealth and had te die and
leave it, and it looked to
me like he wanted to give
everybody in the world all
the trouble he could [in]
what time he had to live. He
had all the confidence in
the world in me, he told one
of his sons-in-law; he alsa
told him he dida't like me
because I wasg not afraid of
biim.

My uncle finally became so
tyrannical that I left. Took
what money I had saved and
weént to schoal. 1 had saved
enotgh money to last me Two
years in school, and before
my second year was over he
was writing for me Lo come
back. Well, when I finished
my second year 1 went back
and worked for him for an-
other year or two,

When 1 left him this time
I got a job with C.H. Chapin
and Company in Philadelphia.
This was a mercantile compa-
ny, and | was given part of
Pennyslvania, Haryland, and
Ohio to travel over. | wai a
traveling salesman,and work-
ed for them until my uncle

who lived at Spates Bridge
died.

Philadelphia was a grand
pld city. 1t was the largest

city 1 had ever been in at
that time, and one can wis-
ion a young man 22 or 23
vears old in the old city. I
took in all there was te be
geen of dones. Just a countey
boy coms to kownl It is
surely named correctly, "The
Quaker City." Having come
from Quaker stock and at-
tended a Quaker Schoal in
Horth Carclina, 1 could ap-
preciate it.

When my uncle died the ex-
ecutors of his estate wrote
toe me and wired me Lo come
and help them settle up the
estate, They offered Lo pay
me & higher salary than Cha-
pin and Company were paying
me, 50 I accepted their of-
fer, I left Philadelphia in
September, 1865 ,and went back
to Spate's Bridge in Korth
Carolina,and went to work om
the Sanders P.Cox, estate.

After his estate was set-
tled my aont employed me ko
astay on and work for her.All
of her children and grand-
children left her after they
gob what was coming to them
out af the sstate, and there
wagn't a white person on the
plantation with the esxcep-
tion of herself and myself.

Ope thing I well cemember,
in the winter of 1886 and
1887, beginning the later
part of December, | took a
team of mules and hauled 300
bales of cotton for a dis-
tapce of 20 miles, to the
nearest railroad station. It
took me over 50 days to com-
plete the job.The reoads were
winding clay and sand roads.
Red clay and sticky when it
was raining and it was often
raining and sleeting. 1 was
in the saddle at 5:00 in the
morning and as a rule it was
g:00 in the evening before I
got my mules fed and watered
and I got dinte the house.

Hy aunt wag as good Lo me
as il 1 had been one of her
own children.l enjoyed work=-
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ing for her.S5he died in 1890
and left a will naming me as

executor of her estate. I
settled up the estate in
about 2 years, would hawve

done it seonsr but 811l her
heira gave me all the trou-
ble they could trying to
break the will. However, the
Courts |.|F|'||!1|:I the will and
the heirs didn't get any
place.

BUYING AND SELLING A FARM.

I moved back to Wayne County
and, with what money 1 had
gaved, bought & farm. Sold
cotton in the year 1893 at
three and three quarter
cénts a pound,which is about
as low as the price of cet-
ton has ever been.By working
hard 1 was able Lo pay ex-
penses and had pleaty of
meat in the smokehouse and
corn in the crib. 1 gave my
farm and horse and buggy to
my father and mother,knowing
that they could gent the
farm for enough to take care
of them.

LIFE IN GEORGIA.

In Hay 1893 1 aceived in
Douglas, Coffes  County,
Geergia. Got a job in a day

or &0 after my arrival work-
ing at a one=horse sawmill.
I worked at the sawmill un-
til the latter part of Aug-
ust, them got work in a drug
atore. 1 studied whenever I
got a chance.l learned quite
a bit of chemistry while
working in the drugstore.

In June 1897 helped fight
a fire and got too hot, and
took sick with the typhoid
fever.l got back down to the
drugstore about the middle
of August.Looked like I new-
er would get my health back,
but managed to keep up and

Eoing,
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MILITARY LIFE.

In February 1898 the HMAINE
wag blewn up and Governor
Atkinson called on Georgia
for her gquota of troups. I
went with Company G, First
Georgia Regiment, Brunswick
Rifles. My army experience
was not fer a great pericod
af time, but gave me all the
acmy life I'we ever wanted.

We were first stationed at
Chicamauga Park,a mile or so
distant from Knoxville, Ten-
nesses, AS S00n as my papers
wiere checked over and the
officers found ocut I was a
druggist they put me in the
hespital tent, and | admin-
igtered to and waited on
sick folks the rest of my
time in the army.

From Chicamauga Park we
were sent to Macon, Georgia,
and stayed there until 1 was
mustered out about the 15th
af the [ollowing November.
From Macon 1 went to wisil
my father and wmother in
Horth Carolima,

REHINISCING.

Sitting around the f[ire in
the evenings we would remin=-
isce.Talk over old times. Hy
father and mother were pret-
ty well-to-do for people in
the South before the Civil
War.They owned a big planta-
tion and quite a few slaves.
Father asked me if 1 remem-
bered the old plantation
home, the Negro cabins and
all.

I told him I couldn't re=
member the old home and all
go well, but I could remem=
ber -standinog on the piazza
beside Hother when Sherman
rode up to our door and
said: "Madame, where is your
husband?"

She replied,
good  Southern
heql!

"Where all
men should

He said, "Then he is din
Lee's army?"

Her reply was, "Yes, and 2
of my sons and all | hate iE
that I haven't 500,000 more
Lo put with them.”

It wasn"t but a few min-
utes after that before the
house and cabins and every=
thing but the clothes on our

backs were burned to the
grodnd.
Hy mother then started

teaging me- I wasn't & years
old when this happened in
1862. She asked me if 1 re-
membered going with her to
Fortress HMuaroe to get my
father, who had been severe-
1y wounded and was exchanged
in the exchange of officers,
and had gotten word through
to Hother somehow to come
get him. 1 could remember
going with her and that was
about all.

It was at about the Lime
of the blow-up of Petersburg
that Father got wounded. Of
course, trains at that time
were very slow;it took quite
a while to go from Goldsho-
ro, away across Virginia te
Fortress Munroe, and we had
to ‘stop for 2 houre in Wel-
dan, MNorth Carolina, for
breakfast. At the breakfast
table: im the hotel I got
hold of the sugar dish and
ate wp what sugar they had
in the hotel, which goes to
show how scarce such things
were in the Southern States
at that time. MHother never
forgot the incident, much to
my embarrassment many Limes.

When we gobt Lo Fortress
Monree 1 was the proudest
thing you ever sSaw Lo see my
daddy, 1 don't remember a
thing about the Fortress
Honroe, 1 was wvery interest-
od in the way my daddy was
handled, though, and the
Horthern soldiers were just
as pentle in handling and
putting him on the train as
if they had Union seldiers.
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We got him home and 1t was=
n't long before he was on
crutches and a short while
after that he was back in
Lee's army and was with him
at Appomattox when he sur-
rendered,

Dr. John Jones wvisited
Father and treated him after
we had brought him home. 1
never shall forget the old
doctor driwving uwp to the
house, getting out of his
buggy and taking the pretti-
ek, shiny black little suit-
case, 1 called it, and going
in te see Father.The oftener
I saw that litile medicine
chest the more | became im-
pressed.] decided,right then
and there, when 1 gréw up 1
was going to be a doctor and
have one of those thinmgs. 1
think this was my First idea
of ever becoming a doctor.

Many a pleasant evening we
spent sitting around the
fire listenimg to Father
describe the different bat-
tles he was in., He could
picture them to us even Lo
the minutest detail.

I can remember a verse or
two af one of the songs that
was sung during the recon-
struction days. What makes
me remember it so well,] was
working at the time for my
uncle in Green County, and
Cousin Hattie Hizzell [rom
Hontgomery, Alabama, came Lo
visit my aunt there.When her
wisit was finished she want-
gd to po to New Berne for a
vizit with some more tela-
tives, 1 had to go with her.
Women, in those days after
the war, were not allewed to
travel alene.

She was a Litile old lady
about 50 years old, and one
of the bloods,an aristocrat,
carried  herself like a
quesn. We got the train at
Wilson and a couple of
Northern men happened to be
gitting in the seat behind
us .
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We hadn't traveled wery
far before we passed some
Negroes ab work on the road.

It was pretty chilly and
they had a fire and would
warm Cthemselves a bit and

then run back and work a
while. The weather wasn't so
cold that if they had been
working as they should hawve
they wouldn't have needed a
fire. Well, these "Damn Yan-
kees" sitting behind us made
several remarks about the
wWay the Negroes were treat-
ed, .which dida't sound so
well to Cousin Hattie,

She saild, "Tommie, hand me
my guitar.™

Bhe always: carried her
guitar with her and could
play one pnicely. | handed it
te ber, she tumed 4t and
struck a few chords and be-
gan.l mever shall forget the
following:

I followed olfd Warse Robert
Far four pears figlh sl
{ catched the el
And grarved ar Podnr Look O,
Bui | kilted & chance of Yankees
Arved lrar’s jusr witar | ol

Five hundred thousand Yankees
Liw gtiff in Southern Clay.

They died of Sauthem fever,
OF Enpthern steel and shol.

I g Jt rad Bean fie millian
{matesd’ of what we oot

I wigh it had been five mitlion
frgtesd of Wil we pot,

About that time Gthe two
Horthern men got up and went
inta another ecoach and we
weren't hathered Anymore
during our trip.

Can't wou just see the
little old lady, and don't
you know how much geood it
did her to hush wp Lhose two
e .

[The following portions are repriniod
from the succeeding seven pages of the
remalnder of the fimt venion of DO

Kennedy's sutobiography. They had
wan numbered to again begin with
numbar one, |

HIGRATING TO FLORIDA.

During my army experience
one heard quite a bit of
talk about Flerida. In other
words Florida was more talk-
ed about as a plonger state
for young men Gto go to ta
start their life's work than
the old phrase, "Go west
young man,goe west." 1 decid-
ed to go to Florida,so after
my visil with my parents in
Narth Carolina, [ teck the
train to Florida, got as {ar
ag Savannah,Georgia, amd my
money ran out -- most of it
== [ counted the crosstiecs
from Savannah, Georgia, Lo
Jacksonwille . That is common=
ly known as walking the
rails.

From Jacksonville [ got
stesrage pacsEape ol @ SLeam-
boat to Sanford, Florida. |
spent from Tuesday dntil the
following Saturday trying to
gt a job im Orange County.
Sanford was inm Orange County
at that time.On Sunday morn=
ing 1 took my satchel, put
it to a lictle stick, pubt it
across my shoulders and
counted the crossties to Ti=
tusville; slept that night
in a little aak thicket just
guteide af Titusville, next
morning 1 looked the Lown
over for work,but found that
the freesge of 1894 and 1895
had left sverybody in pover-
ty around Titusville.Finding
nothing to do there | went
to the steamboat office and
tald the purser bow 1 was
fixed., He told me to come
back that afternoon,Llhat Lhe
boat would be there at 4:00,
and to pass right by him in
the deoorway, not stop and,
as 1 went by him, he would
hand me a pass;that he would
be standing in the door.
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The steamboat arrived at
Jensen the next morning a-
bout 9:00.1 got off and went
te the pineapple fHelds to
tey and get work, [ had been
teld there would surely be
work at Jensen.

The pineapple fields were
4 sight te me. 1 had never
geen 4 pinsapple field be-
fors. Hundreds of acrea of
[ineapples set in rows like
corn, and growing on a stem
about 12" te 18" long out of
tops just like the tops on
fresh pineapples one buys in
Lhe markel.The soil on which
Lhey wore grown was white
gand. 1t seems as though the
pineapples are beLter . and
aweeter when they are grown
on the white sand.

I found nothing to do and
walked on down to Stuarct and
found mothing to do there.
While 1 waz at Stuart late
in the aftecnoon | met 4 man
with a little sailboat going
to Olicia.He was & fisherman
and offered me a job fish-
ing. I went with him and
found out that Fishing that
he wanted me to do was en-
tirely different from the
hook and line fishing that I
was used to. He wanted me to
take a docy and a net and go
out in the ocean and stay
all night and come in the
next morning with a load of
fish. Enowing nothing about
that kind of work I gquickly
told him I hadn't leost any-
thing cut inm that ocean and
I vwas surely not going out
there te find anyvthing.

That night sitting around
the campfire and talking 1
et an old gentleman named
Tolbert,from Alabama.He told
me [ had a job {if 1 could do
it. It wasn't his job but a
man from Palm Beach wrote
him to have a carload of
cross-ties cut and ship them
to him if he could find any-
body to do it.] asked him if
had had an ax. He told me he

<95

didn't have but would get me
one  the next moerning and
did., We ground the ax and I
Wwent to chopping Lies,

Crossties are 9" square
and 9' long as a rfule and
they are the hardest work in
the world te cut out of
Florida pine, the smoothing
of them and all is done with
an ax. The blade of the ax
they are smoothed up with is
about 12" long and is round-
ed, It is quite a job to
learn how Eo use one of them
in itself, but 1 d4id it.

I was just owt of the Uni-
ted States Army and my hands
were soon blistered  and
hleeding, but I rubbed plen-
ty of kerosene on them and
kept at work and in 5 days 1
had 5 cords of cross-ties
cut and on a ¢ar. The CLrees
were placed beside the rail-
road and I did the work out
in the opén and it was plen=
ty hot.

When the train come along
ta take the ecar to Palm
Beach,] crawled on it and we
were from 11:00 p.m. until
5:00 npext morning going 30
miles: on that freight. HMr,
Tolbert met me and introduc-
ed me to the man for whom I
had cut the wood. He invited
us to have breakfast with
him, and told me that if 1
had nothing to do he woeold
give me 52.50 to unload the
wood I had cut for him. He
had the car placed so that 1
could throw the wood out
where he wanted it.] went to
work in about an hour's time
and by 12:00 the car was
empty. He then settled with
me for both cutting the ties
and unloading the car. 1 im-
mediately went to a barber
shop and cleaned up, and put
on the best clothes 1 had,
left my suitcase at the bar-
ber shop, went Lo o restaur=
ant and got my dinner, and
then decided to look aver
the eity.

Before we go any further I
had better tell something
about the country 1 traveled
over getting to Palm Beach.
As I said from Jacksonville
I took the steamer to San-
ford. In those days most all
business wWas carried on on
the rivers. You were nob out
of sight of a steamboat or
the smoke [rom one the whaole
distancs., We left Jackson-
ville about 3:00 in the af-
ternoon and got te Sanford
about 3:00 the next morning.

That river trip, what 1
saw of it was beautiful. The
river was from a half mile
to a mile or two or three in
most places and sometimes
wider. The bkanks on both
sides were dense with tropi-
cal foliage: water oaks,
dripping with Spanish moss;
live caks, cypress, water
hyacinths in the water pro-
fusely,cattle feecding in the
water up to their bellies,
cranes and water birds of
different kKinds and colors.
All green, rich green, with
the purple glints striking,
thrown from the gray of the
Spanish moss -- beautiful.
Toward evening all slowly
changing to a bluish gray,
with just a touch of laven-
dar in it, and the shore
lines slowly fading into the
night. One looked above the
shore line at the sky and
sunset, and saw God's handi-
work.

A Florida sunset all the
colors of the rainbow,
blended: old rese,  shell
pink, deep orange,roeyval puc-

ple, and all the grays of
different tones and rich-
ness, that one imagine. The

whole picture slowly blend-
ing and harmonizing first to
a soft gray with the lovely
colors faintly showing and
finally the dark curtain of
night is dropped.

The country | walkéd from
Sanford to Titusville was
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serub oak with now and then
a hammock, plenty of palmet-
to, and cabbage palms and
ping trees, the long leaf
Flerida pine and as | cross-
ed the prairie saw grass.
The whole countey was wvery
sparsely settled. 1 didn't
PaEs O PETEON, or see 4
house from Sanford to Titus-
ville.

From Titusville on the In=
dian River. It iz one of thae
most beantiful rivers in the
world,I think. It is differ-
ent from the St. Johns be-
cause it is brackish, and at
that time fizhing was car-
ried on very extensively on
it.Wild ducks literally cov-
ered its surface, co-mingled
with pellicans, sca gulls,
cranes of all kinds and col-
ors, mostly white, blue and
gray. The river is very wide
two or three miles mosbt its
entire length. The banks of
the river about the same as
the 5t.Johns,with the excep-
tion of now and then a break
in the sast ane where an in-
let into the Atlantic Ocean
formed.

West Palm Beach is on the
west shore of Lake Worth,
Palm HBeach i858 on the east
shore., Most of the citizens
at that time lived in West
Palm.Flagler was just begin-=
ning the building of his two
large hotels: The HBreakers
and The Hoval Poincianna, in
Palm Heach.

I walked around an hour or
g6 locking over the town. It
wasn't wvery large at that
time possibly a thousand in-
habitants, As | was turning
a corner | met 4 man 1 had
known in Georgia a few years
before, he recognized me as
goon as he saw me, asked me
what 1 was doing.

I teld him, "Looking for a
Jjab. "

He says,; "Heel me heére at
3:00, and if{ one can be had
in this end of Florida you
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thall have it."

I met Dr. Arthur Poogh @&
deptist at 3:00 the appoint-
ed time, and we got in a
boat and went across the
Lake to the Royal Poincian-
ns. He introduced me to sev-
eral parties among them Mr.
Fred Stercy and Mr. Fremd,
who was the gardner. 1 got a
job te e te work that might
at 7:00 as night watchman. 1
was on time and worked a-
round the Koval Poincianna
until the [ollowing July.

Mr. Bill Lainhart hired me
then for a couple of weeks
to watch the Flagler resi-
dence and stay in calling
distance of the house, so if
Hre. Flagler became violent
or got away from the nurses
I could assist them. 1 had
nothing te do but keep in
calling distance of the
house, so0 I almost memorized
Flint's Practice of Medi-
gine., I studied it the whole
time 1 was an that job.

Mr. Flagler a little later
got a divorce from Mrs.Flag-
ler on the ground of insani=-
t¥#.The only diverce that has
ever besn obtained on the
ground of insanity in the
United States and alsa Lhe
poly one that was ever ob-
tained on that ground in
Florida, It 48 claimed by
some that it coat Flagler
ane millien dollars to get
the Legislature [o pass the
law making insanity a ground
for divorce. The wery next
Llegislature repealed the law
and consequently only the
one divorce was ever obtain=
ed on: that ground.

Hr. Charlie Hait was head
carpenter at the Royal Foin-
cianna and needed carpen=
ters, 1 knew nothing about
carpenter work but he gave
me work and 1 worked at car-
pentering until the last of
September.

ARRIVAL AT NEW RIVER.

One of the men | met while
working around the Poincian-
na was John Hullikin.[|1] He
was interested inm cibtrus
groves and wanted to stasrt a
grove of his own, he had
heard that in the wvicinity
around Fort Lauderdale there
was some pgeod cdtrus land,
a5 well as some good farming
Lanl,

I thought [ might try my
hand at farming in Florida
S0 we gobt together, wenlt to
Fort Lauderdale, to look a-
round and see what we could
find.He found what he wanted
about 7 miles south of Fart
Lauderdale, and a few wears
later put oult an orange
grove onm it.

I also made up my mind to
put in & crop there that
seasonm, S0 1 went back to
West Falm Beach, and goL my
few belongings and retuorned
to Fort' Lauderdale, on the
2nd day of October 1BS99.

FRANK STRANAHAN

[“Historical Mysterious Picturesque New
River,” Friends of the Library of Forn
Louderdale, Florida, Inc., 1978-1674.]
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I arrived at 11:00 at
night 1in a pouring rain;
took my satchel and followed
a trail down the river bank
until [ came to Stranahan®s
camp [2], where I got a row-
boat and crossed the river,
went over and saw old uncle

Billie Marshall [3] and he
took me in for the night.
Next morning it was still

raining. He called me to
breakfast. 1 had but one
quarter, gave it to him for
my night's lodging, saying 1
had nething to pay for
breakfast with.

He said, "Come on and eat,
if it ever quita raining You
can work and pay for fc."

I told him, "yes." I did-
n't mind work.

It rained steady day and
anight until the 11th day of
Hovember.

One of the first things 1
did was cross the river and
investigate Stranahan's
camp. Frank Stranahan had
come to Fort Lauderdale some
years before and oa  the
north bank of the river just
a little west of where the
ferry crossed built what was
known as Stranahan's camp.He
built a frame store about 20
by 20 feet, and stocked it
with some groceries, patent
medicines, dry goods and
traded mostly with the Semi-
nole Indfams. The building
et about one hundred feet
from the river bank and
there was several big water
oak trees around the place;
making 1t an ideal camping
ground.I have seen a hundreed
or two Indians camped there
doing their trading, selling
alligator hides mostly Eto
Mr. Stranahan, but he bought
some epret plumes from them,
He shipped the hides and
plumes North and did a
flourishing business, made
money .

A wvear or two later he
married and built a big two
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story house there and that
house [4] now is one of the
landmarks af Fart Laudep-
dale.

The Semincle Indians in-
terested me.I had never seen
them before, they are darker
of skin than any other tribe
of Indians. Their mesnner of
dress one can't describe we-
ry well, the women wore
dresses of many colors,which
reached to the ground, and
anywhere from a peck to a
bushel of coloared beads a-
round their necks. The men
or "bucks" wore dresses knee
length and not as full as
the women®s but just as many
colors.

By this time a man by the
name of Sandy Young had put
in his apprarance; so we got
together, went up the river
where my ground was =-- he
rented him some ground from
somebody == %6 we went there
and built a palmette shaeck.
He knew the trocking busi-
ness. 1 didn't, We batched
there during the season.
During the time the crop was
made we got ws a little
credit, and that is the way
wie eat.

Mr. Mullikin at Palm Beach
furnished me fertilizer to
make. the crop with for a
certain part of what the
crop sold for.

[The following portions are reprinted
from the second version of Dr. Kenne-
dy’s autobiography. Thess axcerpts bagin
on page thres of this version. ]

YELLOW FEVER, MY FIRST CASE.

Right about the later part
of October, 1899, ar the 1st
af MNevember, 1899; n young
man named Walt Marshall left

this place and went to Hia=-
mi, and he brought back a
case of wyellow fever with
him from Miami. That was my
first case in Fort Lauder-
dale,

From him it broke out and
every man, woman and child
on Mew River had the yellow
fever, black and white. My
last case was a lady whe
gave birth te a baby during
the time she was sick. HMuch
to my surprise,the baby liv-
ed and done well,

I worked in my tomatoes
all day and pulled a rowboat
up  and down the river at
night going te ses these
people that had the fever.
One night 1 had pulled a
rowboat 5 miles up the river
to sea a family at the head
of the river. On my way back
about one or 2:00 in the
night 1 was slowly pgoing
down the river next to the
bank and something lifted me
and my rowhoat out of the
river, threw me out and my
oars.and I lost my hat.l £i-
nally swam around and Ffound
one oar and managed to bail
the boat out, and sculled it
on home.

Along about the middle of
March, 1300, after the epi-
demic had ceased,] was work-
ing in my tomatoes in the
miud, about knee deep. 1 hap-
pened to look away across
the field next to the river
and 1 saw three men coming
towards me, One of them was
Hr.E.T.King, 1 koew him. The
other two wore blue jackets;
they kept coming on, until
they got to me, and Mr. King
thtroduced me to them, One
was [r, Hosea, from New Or=-
leans, The other was [r. Yam
Huss from Fernandina, Flori-
da .

Dr. Hosea saya, "1 under-
stand wou are practicing
medicine up here.”

I says, "Yes sic."™

He saya, "What right have
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you Lo practice medicine
hereT"

1 says, "None whatever,
only froem the suflering
cause of smanity.

*This place had been gquar-
antined and wyou could not
et a doctor. The doctors
from Pals Berach woulda't
come, and those f{rom Miami
were not allowed to come.™

That was the answer | gave
Hosea, and Van Huss. There-
fore 1 had to do the best I
could for the sick people.

They had me to go and show

them every patient 1 had
had, and when they got
through and examined them

all they complimented me on
the job, and Dr. Hosea told
m to make out & bill and
send it to him at New Or-
leans and be would o.k. it
and 1 would get my moasy.
Which 1 did.

ROMANCE, EDUCATION, AND MAR-
RIAGE.

An soon as | gol my crop
shipped 1 cut out for the
University of The South Med-
ical College [5]. I went up
there and spent sin sooths
in the sedical school to
gain what [ had lest from wy
former lectures.

| cane back here in Decen-
ber 1900 and about the first
thing 1 sav was ey |future]
wife with bher back Lo ==
[6]. The ald people T had
boarded with had been up in
Georgis and she casme back
wvith thes to spend the win-
ter. | got Board at my same
gld place, 1 made another
erap that year and on the
6th of June when ahe left
here | went with her home, I
stayed around there loprg
enough; until we made our
arrangesests to marry asd I
talked to her parents abouat
it.

Her

Hother Jdida"t Bave
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much te say, but her Father,
being & MHissiomary Baptist
preacher, he bucked like a
young bromco. However | fi-
nally told him that we had
consenled Co be married and
I would like for it te be
agrecable; bowewer, we were
going to be married if she
lived and 1 did eatil the
following December.

1 left there and went on
back to medical school ,stood
an examination and got a di-
ploma at the close of Lhe
school. Left there and came
on back and stopped and went
out to get my [future] wife
apd her brother and [ went
apd got the marriage license
amd bher poor old Papa tried
to marry us. He gave out in
his ritual asd finally broke
dowvn and boo-booed, and pro-
nounced us man and wife in a
broken boo~—hoo, an the 23rd
day eof Decesber, 190].

PRACTICING MEDICINE
LAUDERDALE .

IN FORT

Three days later we took the
tealn and came back to Flor=
ida, to Fort Lauderdale. We

got here the 2nd day of Jan-

uwary, 1902, and | pitched an-
other crop and went to prac-
ticing wedicine full blast
without & borse, without asy-
thing but =y feet to walk
on.

I was wp every morning at
&:00 and would go and work
is my tomsto crop all day
and walk wp and dowm the
river every might Lo see
aick people, and let them
get me back and forth across
the river in their rowboats.
Then [ got Lo practicing all
over the County from Stuart
to Miami; wyou might say, |
have been from here to Stu~
art to see sick people.

On the &th of July 1902, |
was called to Deerfield
right early.l took the early
train, got up thers and saw
three or four patients that
had typhoid fever all in ooe
house. | waited around there
a while after I got through
with those and started to
walk back hose, 15 miles., On
the 4th of July and the sun
a=brofiling down.

1 got down right close to
Pompano and gave out, had a
sunstrokejthat iz not exact-
Iy,I saw | was going ta fall
if 1 didn’t get in the woeds




and sit down in the shade. 1
hadn't been there but a lit-
tle while before the section
man came along with his hand
car, going to dioner- He
stopped and took we up;
had semse enough tTo ses
w8 in pretty tough shape
e stopped at his bouse
igvited = in to dioner
I stayed there until late
the afternoon, aod ke
pizs men and the hasdcar
brought == bome to
Lauderdale, Hiz Dame was
Saxon .

He reported the trip ko
the supervipor of the rail-
read, and soon got isstruc-
tions from the beadquarters
when anybody was sick up and
dosm the road, to take his
handcar and go and get the
lictle doctor for thea.

o 4
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BNEEZING.

My next labor case was in
Pompano, and there was szome
fun connected with it; that
is, that it wam fun for me.
¥e fooled around there from
about &:00 in the afterncon
watil & way towards day bext
morning. Ther® wWas & WVery
dear old grandsa lady arousd
all the time.

Finally abe said o ==,
"sky doa’'t you soccic berT"

That snce@e bBer Was SoEr—
thing nev to me. Something I
had mever brard of before.
S0, | replied to ber that 1
bad opever berard aoythisg
about it but, if she wasted
to soeeze her to go ahead
and smeere ber. So [ waited
patieatly and kept my eyes
open wanting to know what
snecging meant; so in a few

minutes ashe Etook out her
gnuff box and took some
herself and then took a

pinch and put it in the la-
dy's nostrils and soon she
was sneezing. And 1 am frank
to admit that as simple as
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it wam it had enough effect
on the nervous system to
start up good hard labor
paina and at about &:00 a.m.
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:
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long and a8 big arcund as =y
Lictle finger in the baby's
mouth and It wis sucking a-
way on it.However mother and
baby come out all right and
got aslong fine and the boy
i o Fine voung man 30 years
old today.

HR.HONK, TELEGRAPH OPERATOR.

My mext case at Pompano was
am old telegraph operator
pamed Monk.A man named Char=
lie Hale sent afier == for
Hr. Sonk. He was Express man
at PFompane at that Time and
the Express Company bad fur-
niahed him with a pair of
mules and & wagon teo baul
stuff to the depot with 30
that they could get it. Be
seat & man after o= with his
mules and | got wp there a-
bout B:00 at night.

I went to Hr.Hale's bousns
and he took his lanterm and
walked with me and we cross-
ed the canal fn a rowbsat
and found the patient in &
licktle old shack.

Mr.Male says, "Doctar, can
you do anything for him? 1
think he is dead but maybe
vou can do something for
him."™

Well, 1 examined the old

man and found out what was
going on and found owt he
had hemorrhagic fever and
kad bled about to death from
his kidoeys. I bhad a grest
big one pound bottle of pure
powdered calomel.l proceeded
to¢ pull his toagoe out and
put abeut 20 to 30 grains of
that powdered calome]l on the
base o2f his Ltongus; took a
tin cup of water and drench-
ed it dowa him.

Then 1 procecded o shoot
him with a bypodemic of
strychaipe, digitalis and
aitroglycerise, all at one
time. Mr.Hale and [ sat hy
and watched him all night
gatil next morning abool day
Light.The old man then apen-
ed his eyes and could whis-
per. We gave him-a glass of
water and 1 then gave him 3
or 4 capsules of gquinine. 1
tald him | would be back the
next day te see him, and
left. Next day 1 found the
ald man able to sit up and
he got well all right.

Still 1T bad no horse or
anmy way to get around with
except on fool unless people
would come after me in their
wagons. There wasn't & buggy
in the country, nor a horse.

GLORGE, PRESS ROPER'S SON.

In April 1903, | was working
im =y tomate patch wp the
river and a san had got bald
of an old hborse and buggy in
Panis scosevhere, and had
droved through the paths ,and
cwver the ditches, banks,
praicies and fields, and
through the woods asd he
stopped his borse and came
across the Field wvhere 1 wan
at work and wanted me Lo go
to bhe buggy then to see his
boy, then about 7 years aold.

I jgot to the buggy and
found the boy ceying and
Jeeking all over. 1 asked
him what was the trouble. He
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said he stuck a mnail in his
foot the night bhefore about
dark.

I had & little pocket case
in my coat pocket, ] took out
one of the lancets and pap=
ped {t inte place where the
nail went in good and deep
and out jumped a lomp of
puss  about the size of a
pea; a right hard lump; and
he was asleep, right sound
agleep, in 2 minutes.

That boy was George Roper,
Press Roper's son. Today a-
bout &1 or two years old and
a wife and children,and I am
glad to say is doing well.

HRS . ESKULSON OF CHICAGO.

My next cases in Dania was &
Mra.Eskulson, A Chicago la-
dy. 1 went down there and
waited on her and pulled her
out of a case of severe fev-
er, pgot her up and doing
well; and her husband was a
pretty wealthy man at that
time, so after she got able
te ride and take the train

he wanted to carry her back -

te Chicagon. He got after me
to go with him to Chicago.
Well, 1 had nobody to leave
with my wife; however, it
turned out all r:‘.glﬂ_- About
that time my wife's sister-
in-law came to see her and
she promised to stay wilth
her. So he ordered a state-
room  and W boarded a
through treain at Dania for
Chicago.

1 left her with these lit-
tle thin Florida clothes on
and stepped off the train on
Sunday morning in Chicagoe in
sfow knee deep. Well ,we took
a buzs immediately for his
house,sat around by the fire
all day on Sunday.

Honday morning it was celd
but the lady had got so much
better that [ decided that 1
could get back home,

Kennedy /Autobiography

The train left Chicago at
abeut 7:00. About 5:00 me
and the old man went down
and he put a 350 overcoat on
me; it was still cold and
chilly; and gave me %250 4n
cazsh and & ticket back to
Fort Lauderdale. I got home
and found twoe or three calls
every which way over the
country; didn't amsunt to
anything but just ordinary
calls.

FIRST BORN CHILD.

My wife took sick at this
time and [ stopped every-
thing and stayed with her.
And on the 17th day of Octo-

ber, 1902, my f[irst child,
W.T. Kennedy was born at
16:00 in the morning., Hrs.

Bellamy walked in about this
time and Hrs. Bellamy washed
the baby and dressed him.
Wife and baby got along all
right; however, he weighed a
pound and a half at birth.

All the Seminoles”® Indians
were acrosse the river at
Stranahan’s  camp, and they
took their bateaus and came
across the river and wanted
to see pickaninoy paleface,
I think every squaw, and ev-
ery pickaninny and most of
the bucks in the whole tribe
were there to see the pale-
face pickaninny.

I had a big long house.The
room where my wife and baby
were had two doors, so I let
them in one door and they
would walk through and look
at the paleface pickaninny
and pass out the other door.

Such antics as they cut,
ane  pever saw  before. ]
couldn't talk Seminole; but
one old squaw,old Mammy Jum=
per,she could talk a little
English, and she stopped and
poked fun at me. She said 1
wasn't no count.l ought to
have made one bigger.

NIGHT RIDE TO POMPANO.

By this time 1 had got me a
little bench-legged pony,
Jim,and I got a saddle, then
I was Fixed for work.Also by
this time people had found
out | was here and all owver
the country and began Lo
think I knew a little some-
thing about medicine and
gurgery and Jim and | were
than in the woods and paths
continually mighty near day
and night going to see sick
falks.

About this time it com-
menced to rain, and by the
middle of November this
country was alleat. [ got a
call to Pompano one night to
#eé 8 man, 50 I got on my
horse and paced along up to

Pompane and the bridge at
Cypress creek was afloat.
Howewer 1 got across and

went on and  saw my patient,
started back home at 1:00.
When 1 got to the creek com-
ing back the planks Wwére
floating. I got off my horse
and stepped on thém and held
them down and he spd 1 got
across the creek all right.
A Llittle ways from ¢the
creek bridge on the south
side there was a big ditch
with a bridge across it, 1
started across it and there
happened to be an alligator

there. My horse got scared,
and the alligator got scared
and 1 got scared, [ dom't
know which one was the
worst. Anyway we were on che
bridge which crossed the

ditech, and my horse jumped,
and the bridge slipped out
from under us and we landed
head over heels hoth of us
in the ditch.

Hy horse was tied wp 50 he
couldn’t get out,se 1 jumped
around in the ditch and put
my shoulders to the wheel so
to speak, and managed to get
my horse's front feet back
on the read and we got all
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right. We had gone but a few
vards before we found we
were in swimming water anmd 1
svam Che horse until he got
g0 tired, at last we landed
up against a pine tree and
he poit footing.amd | let him
lean against the Tree and
rest for a goed long spell.
We then went on for another
balf mile and rested somes
sore. We then started across
the prairie, the s
half way up my borse's
sides.

In the meantime the Doon
had come out and it was a
bright scunshiney night. We
struck the pine wvoods out of
the prairie and =y horse

struck a little slow pace
when 1  heard something
sguall; seemed like a woman

in distrese, and my horse
jumped, seemed like he was
uneasy. | stopped him and
slowed him down, and pretty
soon | heard it again closer
to me and | couldn't keep my
horses still. We had gome a
litetle further and the thing
squalled again not very far
behind me, and [ couldn't
hold my borse, and [ let him
rum.

I realized by this time
that it wasn't no woman.That
thing folloved me 2 to 3
miles and I had two more
bridges to cross, but these
bridges weren't afloat a-
cross the crecks. [ dom't
think my horse struck the
first creck bridge sore than
iwice, and then we struck a
sand bank. e then crossed
the asecomnd creek which is
mow Middle River. After we
crossed the last bridge the
road sade a vhirl and cross-
ed the railrosd anmd struck
apother sand bank and after
we had gone about a mile the
horse =lowed down and took
it along guieter,

In the meantime 1 had done
some thinking. I decided it
wan & panther that had been
following us., | decided as [
rode uwp the Stranahan’s camp

opposite my house on the
river about 3:00 in the
morning, that 1 had better

stay with my horse.l managed
to find some dry matches and
I don't know how that hap-
pened, but | built a fire and
stayed there with my horse
until the pext morning.
The next moming I crossed
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the river and fed my horse
and nsaw my wife and baby
were all right. About 12:00
I started back Lo see my pa-
tient and as | crossed the
first creek | got to watch-
ing the road and [ found my
thoughts emactly right.

It was a panther and big
one from the jumps he had
made and the tracks that
were in the sand. To comfirm
this shile | wvas gome te
Fompane this sorming To see
ay patient, Fom Cherry, and
Karl Maddox and J.B. Farrell
[7], whe lived wp New River
on the side in a kind of a
suampy place where they had
their tomate crop, had dogs.
That morning when they got
up their dogs got scared and
got after something and they
ran Mr. panther up a tree;
and those boys got their
guns and killed the gentle-
man,snd when I got back that
evening late they had him
Ilying in the depot at Fort
Lauderdale, and he measured
eleven feoet two inches from
tip to Lip.

By this tise Dania bhad growm
from Heaberg, Jergesom and
Polses to & |[habitatiom] of
about 150 ta 200 and as usu-
al the Metbedist church peo-
ple had begun to take notice
of it s little, se they got
to work and get op by a lit-
tle subscription escugh mon=
ey to build them a little
meetinghouse .50 they elected
Hr. Press Roper as one of
their deacons or stewvards or
whatever the office is that
that office is called in the
Hethodist church,and it grew
along for a year or two.
Finally, they decided that
thoy must have them a little
tevival meeting down there,
and then it was who would
take care of the preacher.
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S0 they went to old Mr.Frost
and wanted him to take a
preacher.

He told them, "No, by God.
I have a good looking wvoung
wife, and ['ll have no damn
preacher  lyving around my
house. 1'11 pay the expenses
of one if some of the rest
of you are 8 mind to take
him,"

S0 Mr.Press Roper took the
preacher to his house. Press
being & man who liked his
toddy; 80 he slipped off
from the preacher one even-
ing late and takes his Lea
and he happened to hear the
preacher coming in, so he
grabbed him a small onion to
eat,thinking he will destroy
the scent of his teddy and
in his hurry he swallowed
the onion whole and got it
lodged in his throat and he
about choked to death.

Hr, Frost put a couple of
boys in his buggy behind his
old nag and told them to run
her to death and get me down
there before he died. The
boys got me pretty qguick and
back we went. 1 jumped down
and ran in and saw what was
the trouble; having no in-
struments with me I jumped
out, took the buggy whip out
of the stock, cut off the
small end to swit my con-
venience and bent ft¢ just
right, all wery hurriedly,
and 1 walked back in the
room took my little piece of
buggy whip and put it in the
onion, and shoved 1t I.'i:!ht.
on down imte his stomach, and
I had the man relieved in a
heap less time than it takes
to tell it.

Every time | saw Mr. Frost
after that he was all tha
tise after me to pay him for
his buggy whip that 1 used
to cure Fress Roper with, he
had lost his buggy whip, and
he thought he ocwught to have
the money.

After that as long as he
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lived every time Hr. Frost
would get Press in a crowd
who didn't koow all about it
he proceeded te tell how
Press hid from the preacher
to take a drink and an onisn
to kill his breath and it
lodged in his throat and
very nearly choked him to
death and how I cut his bug-
gY whip up to save him with,

AUNT SALLY.

About this time my wife took
very sick, and 1 was 3o busy
and had so much to do that I
couldn't stay at home, and I
g0t Aunt Sally, a yellow wo-
man with some Indian blood
in her bubt a better nurse
and a peater one than half
the graduate nurses today.
She stayed at my house for
about 2 or 3 months. During
that time the colored people
had employed one of these
high aristocratic Lady
school teachers over there
of a very dark color. And
Aunt Sally allewed her to
board at her house as she
went home at nights herself,
after she was through at my
hoiise .

After & month or so Aunt
Sally got to missing some
litele things from  her
house, and this wvery dark
lady school teacher's tbime
had expired, and Aunt Sally
missed sSomething else the

morning she left., 5o while
she was at the depol waiting
for the train to leave, Aunt
Sally walked up to her and
demanded what she had taken,
and she commenced to abuse

Aunt Sally for calling her a
thief.
Aunt Sally happened to
have a frying pan in her
hand and she commenced to
flail ¢the colored Schoeal
teacher over the head with
that frying pan, and contin-
ued to do so until she ac-
knowledged she had those
things she accused her of
taking, and got out her ald
satchel and opened it up and
gave them back to Aunt Sal-
ly.About this Ltime the train
came along and the achool
teacher mounted the train
and left pretty well bunged
up over the head and face
and bleeding pretty nicely.

In a day or two the sher-
iff Mr.Frohauck, was up here
wanting to see Aunt Sally,
well, Reed Bryan and 1 hap-
penad to be standing toge-
ther when he got off the
train, He came up and spoke
to us and hie businees.] im-
mediately told him where she
wag but he couldn't carry
her off. She was over there
waiting on my wife and was
geing to stay. After we ex-
plained the thing to him and
teld him the truth about the
matter, he said it was a pi-
ty she didn't beat her some
more and took the next train
back to Miami.

Well Aunt Sally got over
to my house that morning and
she was mad asnd puffing and
blawing. My oldest boy then
about 3% wvears old was lis-
tening to Aunt Sally tell
Hama all about her troubles,
and he made the remark that
if he had a gun he would go
kill that dam black nigger.
My kids thought as much of

Aunt Sally almoat as they
did cheir HMaoma, and they
wers the same way by Bob

HoCulla a big black old ne=
gro man 1 kept around Gteo
harness my horses and Lo
keep my buggy and things in
shape.

v



JIN AND THE AUTOMOBILE.

The following Sunday wmorning
1 had an urgeat call to Da-
mis.] threw the saddle on my
frisky poay Jim,took oy med-
ical chest in one hand and
sat =y oldest baby wp oo a
pillow im froot of me. Got
through ey work in Dania and
started home, and Jim and [
met our first automobile.

We had about a two mile
stretch in the road and I
saw something peculiar and
a8 we got nearer together,
end it got up within 100
yards of us, Jim went Lo the
timber with me my baby, med-
ical chest and all, in spite
of 411 1 could 1 do. As loog
as the old borse lived and ]
kept him 26 years be waz al-
ways afraid of autoscbiles.

A.T.JONES, HORSE DEALER.

About this time A. T. Jones
took siek with a case af Ly-
phoid fever.He stayed in bed
ahout & weeks and [ attended
him. Every day and part of
the time twice a day.

His occupation was & horse
dealer. He had sold all his
horses but ome, and Lhat oDe
vas & beauty, a light sorrel
with black mane and tail,and
as fine a loocking & horse as
anybody wanted to lock at.Be
weighed about 1,208 pounds
and was as active as a kit-
ten. 1 needed a horse might
bad to belp Jim out.

S0, whea Jones got well so
he could attend to hia busi-
neas he owed me $200.He said
he didn't know how in the
world he would ever pay it.
1 told him I would give him
his doctor's bill foar the
borse. He told me he would-
't sell me that borse under
oo copditions if | would
give him the cash unless I
would get a certificate from
oy wife sayiag she would

e b

mever ®ue him in case he
killed me. The reason he
hadn*t sold him everybody
was afraid of him;, he maid.
I told him, all right.

I had to go to Miami that
day to get a lot of drugs,
and 1 bhad a good harpess and
good reins and a good bit,so
I teok my horse out,and took
the harness off him,and fit-
ted it to the other horse
and bought me a good collar
and fitted it to the horse
good and had a couple of
niggers to help me and we
hooked him to the buggy.

1 had the niggers hold him
by the bits until 1 got in
the buggy and got The reins
in =y hands. 1 weal out of
Jones”™ lot inte Lhe strect
in about two jusps. I whirled
hism right down the rosd for
Miami, and by this time he
was runsing pretty good and
I just beld him in the road
and let him run.

After he had run about a
mile he wanted to stop and 1
took the whip and gave him a
good sharp crack ar two and
kept him a=running. After he
had gone about 6 or 7 miles
he calmed down to a good
nice gait like a horse ought
to, and I wemt om to Hiami
and got oy drugs in the back
of my buggy and came on back
and about an bour by sun
that evening vhen | came by
Jopes® the borse was walking
just as mnice as you please,
handling just as easy as a
baby and | had no more trou-
ble with him as long as 1
kept him worked and driven.
If he ever rested 3 or &
days he was ready to run a=
way with you as soon as you
struck the buggy.

ALLIGATORS AXD BABIES.
One evening aboot 4:00 [ was

called sut to a labar casze.
1 got through about 1:00 im

the night and started home.
Coming along back 1 had Lo
cross a little bramch wvhere
they had made a little sand
road across the brasch just
big enough for a bhorse and
wagon, and there was mud om
both sides neck deep. As |
got there there was am alli-
gator lying right across Cthe
road, it frightenced the borse
and bhe went into the right
hand side; mud half way wup
his shoulders and couldn't
move, | unloosed the traces
and got down in the mud and
put my shoulders under him
and and managed to lift his
forefeet wupon the road and
then took the reins and let
him go out; then I took the
shafts and pulled the wvheels
up against the bank; backed
my borse dowm again beilveen
the shafts took 2 rope | had
oa for a halter and tied his
tail te the cross bar of the
shafts, and held the shafts
up, and made him pull the
buggy out then 1 hitched his
up right and ve come along
home ,

(To e continued next edition.)
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